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Illus 1:  Components of the Milton Lockhart designed landscape, marked in red on the 2nd edition Ordnance 

Survey Map of 1914. 
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1.0 Introduction to Glorious Gardens 

Glorious Gardens was a two-year pilot project (2015-17) to research and record historic gardens and 

designed landscapes in two areas of Scotland.  The project focused on properties which are not listed in 

the Historic Scotland Inventory of Gardens and Designed Landscapes, but which still retain evidence for 

their development and have some conservation value.   

One strand of the pilot project, funded by Historic Environment Scotland and the Heritage Lottery Fund, 

focused on gardens and designed landscapes (GDLs) in the Clyde & Avon Valley Landscape Partnership 

(CAVLP) area while a separate strand, funded by Historic Environment Scotland (HES), studied properties 

in the Falkirk local authority area.  

The  Glorious Gardens pilot project was initiated and managed by Scotland's Garden and Landscape 

Heritage, who contracted Northlight Heritage to recruit, train and support groups of volunteers to 

conduct the research and produce reports on properties in each area during 2015-2017. 

This report has been written by Louise Arthur, Janice Donaldson and Liz Meikle, the volunteers who 

conducted the research and survey work.  The assessment of significance (section 7) was conducted by 

Northlight Heritage based on their findings. 

2.0 Introduction to Milton Lockhart 

Milton Lockhart designed landscape surrounds the site of Milton Lockhart House that was removed from 

this location (NGR: NS 8128 4925) to Japan in 1987.  The estate lies in the parish of Carluke, South 

Lanarkshire, on the north side of the River Clyde. The property is bordered to the west and south by the 

River Clyde and the A72 Hamilton to Lanark road, and to the north and east by woodland and parkland.  It 

lies south of Mauldslie Castle Estate and to the east is Hallcraig.  The lands of Overton Farm lie directly 

across the Clyde.          

Name Designation/Grade ID  Web link 

Milton 

Lockhart 

Bridge and 

Lodge 

Listed building, 

category B 

LB727 http://portal.historicenvironment.scot/designation/LB727 

Milton       

Lockhart 

Wood     

 

SSSI 1161 snh.gov.uk 

 

Townhead 

Burn Wood 

SSSI 1559 snh.gov.uk 

 

Jock's Gill 

Wood 

SSSI 823 snh.gov.uk 
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3.0 Methods 

The study followed the project methodology, as detailed in the Glorious Gardens Method Statement (see 

project archive, held at the National  Record of the Historic Environment maintained by HES).  

It involved the consultation of key historic maps, aerial photographs, local and national archives, and 

databases of heritage assets and statutory designations.  The results were entered on a Property 

Information form, hosted on a secure server, to ensure a consistent level of recording. 

The desk-based research was followed by a systematic walkover survey in January-February 2017 to 

identify and record surviving components and key elements of the historic designed landscape.  The 

survey employed a recording system designed for the project that combines written field notes, tablet-

based data capture and photography.  All data gathered during the project are available for consultation 

as part of the Glorious Gardens archive, held at the National  Record of the Historic Environment 

maintained by HES.  The sources consulted are listed in section 8. 

The information gathered has been synthesised to establish a baseline understanding of the 

development of the designed landscape and its current state, including its overall structure, surviving 

components and conservation opportunities. 

4.0  Desk-based research results 

4.1  Historic maps 

Milton Lockhart appears on maps from the late 16th century onward.  This section summarises the 

changes to the designed landscape which are captured on each of the more informative historic maps. 

 Section 6 draws out further evidence from the maps as it relates to specific components of the 

landscape. 
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Illus 2:  Pont's Glasgow and the County of Lanark (Pont 34) (1593-96). 

 

Pont shows the presence of a large house east of a bend in the River Clyde - namely Milton. It should 

be noted that the Blaeu Atlas of Scotland 1654 also clearly shows the presence of a house, east of the 

River Clyde, named Miltoun. 
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Illus 3:  Roy's Military Survey of Scotland (Lowlands 1752-55) (©British Library). 

 

DŜƴŜǊŀƭ wƻȅΩǎ ƳŀǇ ǎƘƻǿǎ aƛƭǘƻƴΩǎ designed landscape in some detail.  The garden is south of the 

house and appears to be laid out in a square, which has been further divided into quarters. An avenue 

leads down to the River Clyde. There is no bridge at this time so access may have been by boat. The 

main approach appears to be from the east near Miltonhead.  A large area of woodland is shown to 

the north, which has a road bisecting it and leading to Gillbank Farm. There appears to be a clearing in 

the centre of the woodland. This is also the case with a triangular shaped piece of woodland to the 

south-east of the house where there are a number of drives radiating out from the clearing at the 

centre.  Further woodland is sited to the south along the riverbank.  There is evidence of arable land, 

with both open and closed fields and some orchards between the house and the river.  A building at 

the bend of the river is probably a water mill. 
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Illus 4:  Forrest's (1816) The County of Lanark from Actual Survey. 

 

CƻǊǊŜǎǘΩǎ ƳŀǇ ǎƘƻǿǎ ŀ ǇŀǊǘƛŀƭƭȅ ǘǊŜŜ-lined road from Miltonhead curving round north and westwards to 

reach the river at a ford, south of Burnetholm Cottage where there are six enclosures which could have 

been used for horticulture or agriculture.  The road comes to a T-junction by the enclosures.  Turning 

to the north,  the road leads over JockΩs Burn and into Mauldslie estate. The turning to the south goes 

past Milton House along the riverside until it reaches a mill at the foot of the peninsula from where it 

proceeds northwards passing a turning into the carriage sweep at the front of the house.   Just after 

passing a building on the right, the road forks,  the right fork  leading to another ford which gives 

access to the Hamilton to Lanark road near Overton Farm. The left fork proceeds eastwards along a 

tree-lined drive to exit the estate near Miltonhead. East of the house there is an area is divided into 

eight segments, probably a kitchen garden. 

 

There continues to be a large area of woodland to the north of the estate and open pasture south of 

the house. 
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Illus 5:  Ordnance Survey 25 inch, Lanark Sheet XXIV.4 (combined) and Lanark Sheet XVIII.16 (Carluke).  

Surveyed 1858, published 1864. 

 

The Mansion House was built in 1829 in Scottish Baronial style by William Lockhart and renamed 

Milton Lockhart.  It is shown in some detail in the 1864 map and appears to be sited further east than 

the previous house, close to a bend in the river. It is accessed from the Lanark to Hamilton road via a 

new bridge with a lodge house  and the principal drive which has trees unevenly distributed along its 

length. Another drive leads directly to the stables.  A further possible service drive enters the estate 

from Carluke via Milton Road past a lodge house and sweeps westwards, passing a building and the 

rear of Milton Lockhart House to reach the stable and coach house complex with kennels, gasometer 

and engine house nearby.  West of this complex, parkland is quartered into what are probably 

paddocks for the horses.  The road continues north to Burnetholm Cottage and a path leads to a bridge 

ƻǾŜǊ WƻŎƪΩǎ .ǳǊƴ ǘƻ ŜƴǘŜǊ aŀǳƭŘǎƭƛŜ 9ǎǘŀǘŜΦ ! ǘǊŀŎƪ ŦǊƻƳ Dƛƭƭōŀƴƪ CŀǊƳ ŎǊƻǎǎŜǎ ǎƻƳŜ ŦƛŜƭŘǎ ŀƴŘ ōƛǎŜŎǘǎ 

the North Wood ending near a well.  

There is now evidence of a more complex designed landscape surrounding the mansion house - to the 

north, lightly wooded parkland is criss-crossed with pleasure walks and there are terraces from the 

house down towards the river.  A walled garden is clearly shown, with two glasshouses and a sundial, 

and outwith the walls there is a further glasshouse. A small building lies north-east of the house. 
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Illus 6:  Ordnance Survey 25-inch, Lanarkshire 024.04.  Surveyed 1896, published 1897. 

 

This Ordnance Survey map of 1897 is the only one found that shows the position of an icehouse south-

west of the stable complex and on the edge of a belt of trees, which are part of Milton Lockhart Wood. 

The paddocks by the stables have gone, as have the glasshouses in the walled garden. Two buildings, 

possibly one a glasshouse from the walled garden, have appeared in the area north-east of the end of 

the terracing. The sundial has returned to the walled garden. 
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Illus 7: Ordnance Survey six-inch 2nd edition, Lanarkshire Sheets XVIII.SE and Sheet XXIV.NE.  Revised 1896, 

published 1898. 

 

There is little change from the 1864 map. It was no longer the policy to map the internal layout of 

walled gardens by the time of the 2nd edition. As a result, it is not clear how the Milton Lockhart 

garden was laid out.  The sundial appears to have been removed from the walled garden. There are 

fewer paths and trees in the parkland to the rear of the house. The enclosures south of Burnetholm 

have gone. 
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Illus 8:  Ordnance Survey six-inch 2nd edition, Lanarkshire Sheets XVIII SE and 

XXIV.NE.  Revised 1910, published 1914. 

 

The estate has changed little in the intervening 14 years since the previous OS map.  An area of 

pastureland close to the river west of Milton Lockhart House is shown as being liable to flooding, as is 

Sandilandgate Haugh.  The parkland west of the stable complex has been fenced and planted with two 

specimen trees.  North of this complex a gasometer and cistern are marked.  There are slight changes 

near the walled garden, and the sundial is again evident. 
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Illus 9:  Ordnance Survey 1:25,000 Maps of Great Britain Series (N.S.84). Published 1956. 

 

The main changes shown in this map, published in 1956 (46 years later than the previous map), are that 

the lightly wooded pasture land in the peninsula has been planted with fruit trees, with several specimen 

conifers shown near the river. The wooded pasture land north of the house, bisected by the Milton 

Lockhart Burn, has also been planted as orchards. Photographs by RCAHMS show house, lodge and 

gardens intact but empty and neglected. 

 

 

 

  


























































































